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PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION
Item 1. Financial Statements
Boxlight Corporation
Consolidated Balance Sheets
As of September 30, 2017 and December 31, 2016
(Unaudited)
September 30, 2017

December 31, 2016

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable – trade, net of allowances
Inventories, net of reserve
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Total current assets

$

Property and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation
Intangible assets, net of accumulated amortization
Goodwill
Other assets
Total assets

$

783,181
5,168,641
2,371,105
1,435,559
9,758,486
34,396
6,299,748
4,181,991
316
20,274,937

$

$

456,502
2,943,954
4,164,116
447,036
8,011,608
60,040
6,833,477
4,181,991
33,262
19,120,378

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Accounts payable and accrued expenses – related parties
Short-term debt
Short-term debt – related parties
Convertible notes payable – related parties
Deferred revenues – short-term
Other short-term liabilities
Total current liabilities

$

Long-term convertible notes payable – related parties
Deferred revenues – long-term
Total liabilities

4,429,767
4,423,157
2,935,001
681,550
1,050,000
403,870
250,000
14,173,345

$

4,453,893
3,754,050
2,791,582
876,550
50,000
495,603
251,537
12,673,215

238,374

4,060,785
272,123

14,411,719

17,006,123

127

127

Commitments and contingencies
Stockholders’ equity:
Preferred stock, $0.0001 par value, 50,000,000 shares authorized, 1,270,000 shares
issued and outstanding
Common stock, $0.0001 par value, 200,000,000 shares authorized; 5,808,346 and
4,621,687 Class A shares issued and outstanding, respectively
Additional paid-in capital
Subscriptions receivable
Accumulated deficit
Other comprehensive loss
Total stockholders’ equity
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity

581
13,304,292
(325)
(7,394,001)
(47,456)
5,863,218
$

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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20,274,937

461
7,615,732
(325)
(5,488,822)
(12,918)
2,114,255
$

19,120,378

Boxlight Corporation
Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income (Loss)
For the Three and Nine Months Ended September 30, 2017 and 2016
(Unaudited)
Three Months
Ended
September 30,
2017
Revenues
Cost of revenues
Gross profit

$

Operating expense:
General and administrative expenses
Research and development
Total operating expense
Income (loss) from operations
Other income (expense):
Interest expense, net
Other income (expense), net
Total other income (expense)
Net income (loss)
Comprehensive income (loss):
Net income (loss)
Other comprehensive income (loss):
Foreign currency translation gain (loss)
Total comprehensive income (loss)
Net income (loss) per common share – basic
Net income (loss) per common share – diluted
Weighted average number of common shares
outstanding – basic
Weighted average number of common shares
outstanding – diluted

10,228,389
7,327,701
2,900,688

Three Months
Ended
September 30,
2016*
$

7,877,595
5,084,340
2,793,255

2,295,101
60,403
2,355,504

2,049,917
244,515
2,294,432

545,184

498,823

(186,883)
111,993
(74,890)

(549,684)
(51,574)
(601,258)

Nine Months
Ended
September 30,
2017
$

20,407,258
14,595,780
5,811,478

Nine Months
Ended
September 30,
2016*
$

7,049,288
357,955
7,407,243
(1,595,765)

(462,581)
153,157
(309,424)

15,371,130
9,485,596
5,885,534

4,701,275
846,621
5,547,896
337,638

(689,660)
9,262
(680,398)

$

470,294

$

(102,435) $

(1,905,189) $

(342,760)

$

470,294

$

(102,435)

(1,905,189)

(342,760)

$

(18,012)
452,282 $

(12,918)
(115,353) $

(34,538)
(1,939,727) $

(12,918)
(355,678)

$
$

0.09
0.08

(0.02) $
(0.02) $

(0.39) $
(0.39) $

(0.08)
(0.08)

$
$

5,379,762

4,185,637

4,910,245

4,185,637

5,810,755

4,185,637

4,910,245

4,185,637

* Financial information has been retrospectively adjusted for the acquisitions of Mimio and Genesis.
See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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Boxlight Corporation
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
For the Six Months Ended September 30, 2017 and 2016
(Unaudited)

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net loss
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash provided by (used in) operating activities:
Change in inventory reserve
Change in allowance for doubtful accounts
Change in allowance for sales returns
Depreciation and amortization
Stock compensation expense
Debt extension fees
Amortization of debt discount
Write-off of fixed asset
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable – trade
Accounts receivable – related party
Inventories
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Other assets
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Accounts payable and accrued expenses – related parties
Deferred revenues
Other short-term liabilities
Accrued interest on long-term debt – related parties
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities

Nine Months Ended
September 30, 2017

Nine Months Ended
September 30,
2016*

$

$

(1,905,189)
(15,083)
24,194
283,145
559,267
50,046
7,225

19,033
59,164
163,101
13,531
350,000
16,830
-

(2,531,830)
1,808,094
(991,595)
23,291
(29,574)
2,169,107
(125,478)
(1,689)
79,342
(596,727)

Cash flows from investing activities:
Cash acquired through acquisition of Boxlight Group
Payments for purchase of property, equipment and other assets
Net cash provided by investing activities

(1,197,040)
(594,454)
2,111,542
166,753
(626)
(830,311)
226,385
(22,501)
18,529
27,178
184,354

-

Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from short-term debt
Principal payments on short-term debt
Proceeds from short-term debt – related parties
Principal payments on short-term debt – related parties
Proceeds from convertible note payable – related parties
Principal payments on convertible note payable – related parties
Proceeds from issuance of common stock
Proceeds from issuance of common stock upon exercise of options
Proceeds from subscription receivable
Distributions to the member
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities

(342,760)

357,573
(11,706)
345,867

4,301,268
(4,157,849)
(195,000)
1,000,000
29
948,448

3,408,080
(4,520,542)
245,000
(60,000)
1,000,003
1,750
(780,375)
(706,084)

Effect of currency exchange rates

(25,042)

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

326,679

(166,445)

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of the period

456,502

994,103

9,418

Cash and cash equivalents, end of the period

$

783,181

$

827,658

Supplemental cash flows disclosures:
Cash paid for interest
Cash paid for income taxes

$
$

300,916
-

$
$

278,931
-

Non-cash investing and financing activities:
Forgiveness of short-term debt-related parties by LLC-Delaware
Issuance of note payable to settle accounts payable

$
$

-

$
$

222,370
2,235,507

Issuance of note payable and long-term convertible note payable to acquire Mimio
Issuance of Series B Preferred Stock for the acquisition of Genesis
Issuance of Series C Preferred Stick for the acquisition of Boxlight Group
Issuance of Class A common shares to settle accounts payable – related parties
Issuance of Class A common shares to settle long-term convertible notes payable –related
parties

$
$
$
$

1,500,000

$
$
$
$

5,425,000
100
14,391,104
-

$

4,140,127

$

-

* Financial information has been retrospectively adjusted for the acquisition of Mimio and Genesis.
See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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Boxlight Corporation
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Unaudited)
NOTE 1 – ORGANIZATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
THE COMPANY
Boxlight Corporation (the “Company” or “Boxlight Parent”) was incorporated in the State of Nevada on September 18, 2014 with its headquarters in
Atlanta, Georgia for the purpose of becoming a technology company that sells interactive educational products.
Boxlight, Inc., Boxlight Latinoamerica, S.A. DE C.V. (“BLA”) and Boxlight Latinoamerica Servicios, S.A. DE C.V. (“BLS”) (together, “Boxlight
Group”) were incorporated on July 11, 2009, October 17, 2002 and October 17, 2002, respectively. The Boxlight Group is involved principally in the
distribution of interactive projectors and integrated solutions that enhance learning and enable people to collaborate with each other in innovative
and effective ways. In June 2016, Boxlight Group engaged legal counsel in Mexico to start the process of closing the operations of BLA and BLS.
BLA and BLS have been merged into Boxlight, Inc. in July 2016. Boxlight Group was wholly owned by Everest Display Inc., a manufacturing
company in Taiwan. In May 2016, Everest Display Inc. agreed to sell all of its ownership in Boxlight Group to the Company. On July 18, 2016, the
Company acquired Boxlight Group.
Mimio LLC (“Mimio”) was formed in Delaware on July 1, 2013. Mimio designs, develops and sells interactive classroom technology products, of
which Mimio owns most of the design and performance patents, and which are manufactured by a contract manufacturer (“CM”) in Shenzhen,
China. Mimio also purchases and sells other non-proprietary products such as classroom projectors and flat panel displays as an original
equipment manufacturer (“OEM”) from manufacturers in China and Taiwan. The primary market for Mimio’s products is classrooms K-12. All of the
products are integrated in the classroom through Mimio’s award winning operating software “Mimio Studio.” Mimio’s products are distributed
globally through a network of value added resellers (“VARs”) in the U.S. and Canada, and through master distributors in the rest of the world. On
November 4, 2015, Mimio was acquired by Mim Holdings, Inc. (“Mim Holdings”), a Delaware corporation wholly-owned by Marlborough Trust.
Marlborough Trust was established for the benefit of members of the families of affiliates of VC2 Partners, LLC (“VC2 Partners”). VC2 Partners and
Mim Holdings are affiliates of Vert Capital. On April 1, 2016, Boxlight Parent acquired 100% of the membership interests in Mimio from Mim
Holdings.
Genesis Collaboration, LLC (“Genesis”) was formed as a limited liability company in September 2011 in Atlanta, Georgia, to provide solutions that
enhance interactive learning in the business, government, and education markets. Genesis is a technology provider that facilitates effective
communication in schools, training facilities and workplaces around the world. Genesis offers a wide range of integrated products that change the
way individuals collaborate and learn. In the classroom, Genesis offers a wide range of integrated interactive solutions that transform the way
teachers deliver lessons and assess progress. Genesis’ products include interactive whiteboard systems, interactive tables, interactive and standard
projectors, audio systems, data loggers, software, assessment and student response systems. On October 31, 2013, Vert Capital’s subsidiary
acquired all of the outstanding membership interests of Genesis. On May 12, 2016, the Company acquired Genesis from Vert Capital.
BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND PRINCIPLES OF CONSOLIDATION
Acquisitions from Vert Capital and Mim Holdings are considered common control transactions. When businesses were acquired from Vert Capital
and Mim Holdings that will be consolidated by us, they were accounted for as if the transfer had occurred at the beginning of the period of transfer,
with prior periods retrospectively adjusted to furnish comparative information. The acquisitions of Mimio and Genesis were transfers of businesses
between entities under common control. Accordingly, the accompanying financial statements and related notes have been retrospectively adjusted
to include the historical results and financial position of the acquired entities prior to the effective dates of such acquisitions. The information prior
to the Company’s incorporation on September 18, 2014 represents the historical results of Genesis as Genesis was first controlled by Vert Capital
and determined to be our predecessor entity for accounting purposes. The financial information for Mimio has been included in the Company’s
consolidated financial statements beginning on November 4, 2015, when Mimio was acquired by Mim Holdings. Boxlight Group was acquired by the
Company on July 18, 2016. The acquisition of Boxlight Group was accounted for under the acquisition method of accounting. See Note 3—
Acquisitions, for additional information.
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The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Boxlight Corporation, Boxlight Group, Mimio and Genesis.
Transactions and balances among Boxlight Corporation, Boxlight Group, Mimio and Genesis have been eliminated. The assets and liabilities of
Mimio and Genesis in these financial statements have been reflected on a historical cost basis because the transfers of Mimio and Genesis to the
Company are considered common control transactions. When the Company acquired Mimio and Genesis, the Company, Mimio and Genesis were
under direct or indirect control of Vert Capital.
As of October 2016, Boxlight Parent transferred all of the assets and the associated liabilities of Mimio LLC to Boxlight, Inc. and voluntarily
liquidated the Mimio LLC entity in April 2017. On June 14, 2017, Boxlight Parent merged Genesis into the Boxlight, Inc. subsidiary which now owns
and operates substantially all of the assets and business of the consolidated group.
The consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes are prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America (“GAAP”). Certain information and note disclosures normally included in financial statements prepared in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles in the United States of America have been condensed or omitted from these statements pursuant to such
rules and regulations and, accordingly, they do not include all the information and notes necessary for comprehensive financial statements and
should be read in conjunction with our audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2016.
ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of certain assets and liabilities, disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual amounts could differ from those estimates.
FOREIGN CURRENCIES
The Company’s functional currency is the U.S. Dollar. BLA and BLS’s functional currency is the Mexican Peso. The Company translates their
financial statements from their functional currencies into the U.S. dollar.
An entity’s functional currency is the currency of the primary economic environment in which it operates and is generally the currency in which the
business generates and expends cash. BLA and BLS, whose functional currency is the Mexican Peso, translate their assets and liabilities into U.S.
dollars at the exchange rates in effect as of the balance sheet date. Revenues and expenses are translated into U.S. dollars at the average exchange
rates for the year. Translation adjustments are included in accumulated other comprehensive income (loss), a separate component of equity. Foreign
exchange gains and losses included in net income result from foreign exchange fluctuations on transactions denominated in a currency other than
an entity’s functional currency.
ACQUISITION OF BOXLIGHT GROUP
The financial statements include the operations of Boxlight Group after the completion of the acquisition on July 18, 2016. We accounted for the
acquisition of Boxlight Group using the acquisition method of accounting, which requires, among other things, that most assets acquired and
liabilities assumed be recognized at their estimated fair values as of the acquisition date on the balance sheet. Transaction costs are expensed as
incurred. Any excess of the consideration transferred over the assigned values of the net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill.
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COMMON CONTROL TRANSACTIONS
Businesses acquired from Vert Capital are accounted for as common control transactions whereby the net assets (liabilities) acquired (assumed) are
combined with the Company’s assets and liabilities at their historical carrying value. Any difference between carrying value and recognized
consideration is treated as a capital transaction. Cash received from the acquired entities is presented as an investing activity in our consolidated
statements of cash flows.
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
The Company considers all highly liquid short-term investments purchased with an original maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents.
These investments are carried at cost, which approximates fair value. The Company maintains cash balances at financial institutions which, from
time to time, may exceed Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation insured limits of $250,000 for banks located in the U.S. The Company has not
experienced any losses with regard to its bank accounts and believes it is not exposed to any risk of loss on its cash bank accounts.
ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE AND ALLOWANCE FOR DOUBTFUL ACCOUNTS
Accounts receivable are stated at historical carrying amounts, net of write-offs, allowance for doubtful accounts, sales returns and volume rebates.
Allowance for doubtful accounts represents management’s estimate of the amount that ultimately will be realized in cash. The Company reviews the
adequacy of the allowance for doubtful accounts on an ongoing basis, using historical payment trends, the age of receivables and knowledge of
the individual customers. When the analysis indicates, management increases or decreases the allowance accordingly. However, if the financial
condition of our customers were to deteriorate, additional allowances might be required.
INVENTORIES
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or net realizable value and included spare parts and finished goods. Inventories are primarily determined
using specific identification method and the first-in, first-out (“FIFO”) cost method. Cost includes direct cost from the CM or OEM, plus material
overhead related to the purchase, inbound freight and import duty costs.
The Company continuously reviews its inventory levels to identify slow-moving merchandise and markdowns necessary to clear slow-moving
merchandise, which reduces the cost of inventories to its estimated net realizable value. Consideration is given to a number of quantitative and
qualitative factors, including current pricing levels and the anticipated need for subsequent markdowns, aging of inventories, historical sales
trends, and the impact of market trends and economic conditions. Estimates of markdown requirements may differ from actual results due to
changes in quantity, quality and mix of products in inventory, as well as changes in consumer preferences, market and economic conditions.
PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
Property and equipment is stated at cost and depreciated using the straight-line method over the estimated life of the asset. Repairs and
maintenance are charged to expense as incurred.
LONG – LIVED ASSETS
Long-lived assets to be held and used or disposed of other than by sale are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. When required, impairment losses on assets to be held and used or disposed of other
than by sale are recognized based on the fair value of the asset. Long-lived assets to be disposed of by sale are reported at the lower of its carrying
amount or fair value less cost to sell.
INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Intangible assets are amortized using the straight-line method over their estimated period of benefit. We evaluate the recoverability of intangible
assets periodically and take into account events or circumstances that warrant revised estimates of useful lives or that indicate that impairment
exists. No material impairments of intangible assets have been identified during any of the periods presented. Intangible assets and goodwill are
tested for impairment on an annual basis, and between annual tests if indicators of potential impairment exist, using a fair-value-based approach.
Goodwill is not amortized and is not deductible for tax purposes.
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DEBT DISCOUNT
Debt discount is amortized over the term of the debt using the effective interest rate method.
DEFERRED REVENUE
Deferred revenue represents amounts collected for any extended warranty that is separately priced. The Company recognizes revenue from
extended warranty contracts using the straight-line method over the estimated life of the products which is three years.
REVENUE RECOGNITION
Revenue is comprised of product sales and service revenue, net of sales returns, co-operative advertising credits, early payment discounts and
volume discounts paid to VARs. The Company recognizes revenue when persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, delivery has occurred, the
sales price is fixed or determinable and collectability is reasonably assured.
Revenue from product sales is derived from the sale of projectors, interactive panels and related accessories. Evidence of an arrangement consists
of an order from its distributors, resellers or end users. The Company considers delivery to have occurred once title and risk of loss has been
transferred.
Service revenue is comprised of product installation services and training services. These service revenues are normally entered into at the time
products are sold. Service prices are established depending on product equipment sold and include a cost value for the estimated services to be
performed based on historical experience. The Company outsources installation and training services to third parties and recognizes revenue upon
completion of the services.
The Company’s standard terms and conditions of sale do not allow for product returns and it generally does not allow product returns other than
under warranty. However, the Company, on a case by case basis, will grant exceptions, mostly “buyer’s remorse” where the VAR’s end user
customer either did not understand what they were ordering, or determined that the product did not meet their needs. An allowance for sales returns
is estimated based on an analysis of historical trends.
Before Mimio was acquired by the Company, it generally provided 24 to 60 months of warranty coverage on all of its products. Mimio products’
standard warranty period is 24 months, which can be extended to 60 months upon the end user “registering” their device on-line. The Company’s
warranty provides for repair or replacement of the associated products during the warranty period. The Company does not record warranty cost
upon sale, and instead conducts a periodic review of the warranty liability reserve, and based on historical cost-to-trailing- revenue history, will
adjust the warranty liability, with the offset to this adjustment recorded to cost of revenue.
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After the acquisitions of Mimio, Genesis and Boxlight Group, the Company determined a new warranty policy to provide 12 to 36 months of
warranty coverage on projectors, displays, accessories, batteries and computers except when sold through a “Premier Education Partner” or sold to
schools where the Company provides a 60 month warranty. The Company does not record warranty costs upon sale, and instead conducts a
periodic review of the warranty liability reserve, and based on historical experience, will adjust the warranty liability, with the offset to this
adjustment recorded to cost of revenue. The warranty obligation is affected by product failure rates and the related use of materials, labor costs and
freight incurred in correcting any product failure. Should actual product failure rates, use of materials, or other costs differ from the Company’s
estimates, additional warranty liabilities could be required, which would reduce its gross profit.
The Company offers sales incentives where the Company offers discounted products delivered by the Company to its resellers and distributors that
are redeemable only if the resellers and distributors complete specified cumulative levels of revenue agreed to and written into their reseller and
distributor agreements through an executed addendum. The resellers and distributors have to submit a request for the discounted products and
cannot redeem additional discounts within 180 days from the date of the discount given on like products. The value of the award products as
compared to the value of the transactions necessary to earn the award is generally insignificant in relation to the value of the transactions
necessary to earn the award. The Company estimates and records the cost of the products related to the incentive as marketing expense based on
analyses of historical data.
RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT EXPENSES
Research and development costs are expensed as incurred and consists primarily of personnel related costs, prototype and sample costs, design
costs, and global product certifications primarily for wireless certifications.
INCOME TAXES
An asset and liability approach is used for financial accounting and reporting for income taxes. Deferred income taxes arise from temporary
differences between income tax and financial reporting and principally relate to recognition of revenue and expenses in different periods for financial
and tax accounting purposes and are measured using currently enacted tax rates and laws. In addition, a deferred tax asset can be generated by net
operating loss carryforwards. If it is more likely than not that some portion or all of a deferred tax asset will not be realized, a valuation allowance is
recognized.
SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION
The Company estimates the fair value of each share-based compensation award at the grant date by using the Black-Scholes option pricing model.
The fair value determined represents the cost for the award and is recognized over the vesting period during which an employee is required to
provide service in exchange for the award. As share-based compensation expense is recognized based on awards ultimately expected to vest.
Excess tax benefits, if any, are recognized as an addition to paid-in capital.
NET INCOME (LOSS) PER COMMON SHARE
Basic net income (loss) per common share attributable to common stockholders is calculated by dividing the net loss attributable to common
stockholders by the weighted-average number of common shares outstanding for the period, without consideration for common stock equivalents.
Diluted net income per common share attributable to common stockholders is computed by dividing the net income attributable to common
stockholders by the weighted-average number of common share equivalents outstanding for the period determined using the treasury-stock
method. Dilutive common stock equivalents are comprised of stock options.
For the nine months ended September 30, 2017 and 2016 and for the three months ended September 30, 2016, potentially dilutive securities were not
included in the calculation of diluted net loss per share because to do so would be anti-dilutive. Following is a reconciliation of basic earnings per
common share (“EPS”) and diluted EPS for the three months ended September 30, 2017:

Basic EPS
Dilutive effect of exercise of options
Diluted EPS

$
$

Three months ended September 30, 2017
Net income
Shares
Per share amount
470,294
5,379,762
$
0.09
430,993
(0.01)
470,294
5,810,755
$
0.08

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
The Company has evaluated all transactions through the financial statement issuance date for subsequent event disclosure consideration.
NEW ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS
In May 2014, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued Accounting Standards Update (“ASU”) 2014-09, “Revenue from
Contracts with Customers (Topic 606).” The new guidance provides new criteria for recognizing revenue to depict the transfer of goods or services
to customers in amounts that reflect the consideration to which the company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. The
new guidance requires expanded disclosures to provide greater insight into both revenue that has been recognized and revenue that is expected to
be recognized in the future from existing contracts. Quantitative and qualitative information will be provided about the significant judgments and
changes in those judgments that management made to determine the revenue that is recorded. This accounting standard update, as amended, will
be effective for annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2017, including interim reporting periods within that reporting period. The

new revenue standard may be applied retrospectively to each prior period presented or retrospectively with the cumulative effect recognized as of
the date of adoption. Early adoption is permitted, but no earlier than fiscal 2017. The Company is currently assessing the provisions of the guidance
and has not determined the impact of the adoption of this guidance on its consolidated financial statements.
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In August 2014, the FASB issued ACU 2014-15, Disclosure of Uncertainties about an Entity’s Ability to Continue as a Going Concern. The new
standard requires management to assess the company’s ability to continue as a going concern. Disclosures are required if there is substantial doubt
as to the company’s continuation as a going concern within one year after the issue date of financial statements. The standard provides guidance
for making the assessment, including consideration of management’s plans which may alleviate doubt regarding the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern. ASU 2014-15 is effective for years ending after December 15, 2016. The Company has adopted this standard for the year ending
December 31, 2016.
In February 2016, a pronouncement was issued that creates new accounting and reporting guidelines for leasing arrangements. The new guidance
requires organizations that lease assets to recognize assets and liabilities on the balance sheet related to the rights and obligations created by those
leases, regardless of whether they are classified as finance or operating leases. Consistent with current guidance, the recognition, measurement, and
presentation of expenses and cash flows arising from a lease primarily will depend on its classification as a finance or operating lease. The guidance
also requires new disclosures to help financial statement users better understand the amount, timing, and uncertainty of cash flows arising from
leases. The new standard is effective for annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2018, including interim periods within that reporting
period, with early application permitted. The new standard is to be applied using a modified retrospective approach. The Company is currently
evaluating the impact of the new pronouncement on its financial statements.
In April 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-09, “Compensation – Stock Compensation” (topic 718). The FASB issued this update to improve the
accounting for employee share-based payments and affect all organizations that issue share-based payment awards to their employees. Several
aspects of the accounting for share-based payment award transactions are simplified, including: (a) income tax consequences; (b) classification of
awards as either equity or liabilities; and (c) classification on the statement of cash flows. The updated guidance is effective for annual periods
beginning after December 15, 2016, including interim periods within those fiscal years. The Company adopted this guidance in the first quarter of
2017. The adoption of this standard had no material effect on the Company’s financial position or results of operations.
There were various other accounting standards and interpretations issued recently, none of which are expected to a have a material impact on our
financial position, operations or cash flows.
NOTE 2 – GOING CONCERN
These financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis, which assumes the Company will continue to realize its assets and
discharge its liabilities in the normal course of business. The continuation of the Company as a going concern is dependent upon the continued
financial support from its shareholders, the ability of the Company to repay its debt obligations currently in default or negotiate alternative
repayment arrangements, to obtain necessary equity financing to continue operations, and the attainment of profitable operations. As of September
30, 2017, the Company was in default of certain of its debt obligations and had an accumulated deficit of $7,394,001 and a working capital deficit of
$4,414,859. These factors raise substantial doubt regarding the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. These financial statements do not
include any adjustments to the recoverability and classification of recorded asset amounts and classification of liabilities that might be necessary
should the Company be unable to continue as a going concern. The Company is seeking to obtain funds for operations from its initial public
offering and support from its majority shareholder.
F-9

NOTE 3 – ACQUISITIONS
Acquisition of Mimio
Effective April 1, 2016, pursuant to a membership interest purchase agreement, the Company acquired 100% of the membership interest in Mimio
from Mim Holdings. As consideration, the Company issued a $2,000,000 unsecured convertible promissory note (the “Marlborough Note”) to
Marlborough Trust. See Note 12.
Additionally, the Company assumed from Mim Holdings a $3,425,000 senior secured note (the “Skyview Note”) that is payable to Skyview Capital,
LLC, (“Skyview”), the former equity owner of Mimio and interest accrued on the note. The Skyview Note was issued by Mim Holdings to Skyview
on November 4, 2015 as payment for the acquisition of 100% of the membership equity of Mimio. See Note 9.
The Company’s financial statements included Mimio’s assets and liabilities at the historical cost of Mim Holdings. Mimio was acquired by Mim
Holdings on November 4, 2015. Mim Holdings accounts for acquired businesses using the acquisition method of accounting, which requires,
among other things, that most assets acquired and liabilities assumed be recognized at their estimated fair values as of the acquisition date.
Transaction costs are expensed as incurred. Any excess of the consideration transferred over the assigned values of the net assets acquired is
recorded as goodwill.
The following table shows the purchase price, acquisition-date fair values of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed and calculation of goodwill
utilizing the information at November 4, 2015 when Mim Holdings acquired Mimio. Subsequently on April 1, 2016, the Company acquired Mimio
from Mim Holdings in a transaction between entities under common control. Accordingly, the purchase price allocation reflects the fair value as of
the date acquired by Mim Holdings. Upon acquisition by the Company, these amounts were recorded on the historical cost basis of Mim Holdings.
Assets acquired:
Current assets
Intangible assets
Goodwill
Total assets
Total liabilities
Net assets acquired

$

6,677,842
179,722
44,931
6,902,495
(3,477,495)

$

3,425,000

Acquisition of Genesis
On May 12, 2016, Vert Capital contributed 100% of the membership interests in Genesis to the Company. In connection with the Company’s
acquisition of Genesis, the former members of Genesis received 1,000,000 shares of the Company’s Series B Preferred Stock which, upon
consummation of the Company’s initial public offering, will automatically convert into such number of shares that represents 4.0% of the
Company’s fully diluted common stock as defined in the agreement. Upon completion of the Company’s initial public offering, an aggregate of
250,000 shares of the Company’s non-voting convertible Series A preferred stock will be issued to Vert Capital. Such 250,000 shares of the
Company’s non-voting convertible Series A preferred stock will automatically convert into 398,406 shares of our Class A common stock on a date
which shall be one year from the date of the Company’s initial public offering.
Common Control Transactions
The acquisitions of Mimio and Genesis were considered as transfers of businesses between entities under common control; and therefore, the
assets acquired and liabilities assumed were transferred at historical cost of the ultimate parent, Vert Capital. Because the acquisitions were common
control transactions in which the Company acquired businesses, the Company’s historical financial statements have been retrospectively adjusted
to reflect the results of operations, financial position, and cash flows of Mimio and Genesis as if the Company owned Mimio and Genesis for all
periods presented from the date Mimio, Genesis and the Company were under common control, which was November 4, 2015 and October 31, 2013,
respectively.
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Acquisition of Boxlight Group
On July 18, 2016, the Company acquired 100% of the equity interest of Boxlight Group, under the terms of a Share Purchase Agreement entered into
on May 10, 2016 with Everest Display, Inc. (“EDI”). Under the terms of the share purchase agreement, Boxlight Holdings, Inc., a newly formed
Delaware subsidiary of Boxlight Corporation acquired the equity of Boxlight Group. The Company issued to EDI 270,000 shares of Series C Preferred
Stock, that has a stated or liquidation value of $20.00 per share. Upon completion of Boxlight Corporation’s initial public offering (“IPO”) and
subject to the listing of its Class A common stock on the Nasdaq Capital Market or other securities exchange acceptable to EDI, the Series C
Preferred Stock shall automatically convert into shares of Class A common stock. Such newly converted shares of Class A common stock to be
issued to EDI or its subsidiaries represents approximately 22.22% of Boxlight Corporation’s fully-diluted common stock upon the Company’s IPO,
excluding shares issued for private placements and debt conversions.
Under the terms of the share purchase agreement, as amended on September 28, 2016, the parties agreed that EDI and Boxlight Corporation would
settle and pay approximately $5.75 million of accrued accounts payable owed to EDI at September 28, 2016, in the manner set forth below.
(1) $1,000,000 was paid at the closing of the acquisition out of the net proceeds of a note issued to Hitachi Capital America Corp. (See Note 9);
(2) An additional $1,500,000 of the $5.75 million owed to EDI was to be paid by Boxlight Corporation and its subsidiaries in six monthly
installments of $250,000 each, commencing 30 days after the initial $1,000,000 payment referred to above. However, in view of the fact that
such installment payments cannot be presently made by the Company under the subordination agreement between EDI and Crestmark
Bank, we and EDI agreed that the net proceeds from the sale of 1,000,000 shares of Class A common stock upon IPO shall be applied, first,
to prepay the $1,460,508 principal balance due under Skyview Note, and secondly to prepay the balance of the $1,500,000 installment
obligation owed to EDI referred to above. Net Proceeds included costs for professional fees estimated at approximately $300,000, plus any
commissions or underwriting fees that may be payable by the Company to brokers, placement agents or underwriters who assist us in
selling the shares of Class A common stock in the offering.
(3) $2,000,000 of the unpaid balance of the account payable was settled with a 4% non-negotiable convertible promissory note of Boxlight
Corporation payable to EDI, together with accrued interest, on March 31, 2019 (the “EDI Note”). (See Note 12)
The Company recognized the assets acquired and liabilities assumed from Boxlight Group at their fair value on the acquisition date, and the excess
in purchase price over these values was allocated to goodwill. The estimated fair values of consideration paid, assets acquired and liabilities
assumed were determined based on third-party valuation reports provided by specialists.
The following table shows the purchase price, estimated acquisition-date fair values of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed and calculation
of goodwill for Boxlight Group utilizing the information at acquisition date.
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Assets acquired:
Current assets
Property and equipment
Intangible assets
Other assets
Goodwill
Total assets acquired
Total liabilities assumed

$

5,737,836
65,866
7,000,000
514,696
4,137,060
17,455,458
(9,212,161)

Net assets acquired

$

8,243,297

Consideration paid:
Issuance of 270,000 shares of Series C preferred stock
Pre-existing net payable to Boxlight Group

$

8,828,353
(585,056)

Total

$

8,243,297

The Company valued the Series C Preferred shares issued to EDI based on an entity value of the Company of approximately $39,700,000 and 270,000
shares of the Series C Preferred Stock representing approximately 22.22% of ownership of the Company.
NOTE 4 – ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE - TRADE
Accounts receivable consisted of the following at September 30, 2017 and December 31, 2016:
September 30, 2017

December 31, 2016

Accounts receivable - trade
Allowance for doubtful accounts
Allowance for sales returns and volume rebates

$

6,094,858
(477,253)
(448,964)

$

3,562,832
(453,059)
(165,819)

Accounts receivable – trade, net of allowances

$

5,168,641

$

2,943,954

NOTE 5 – INVENTORIES
Inventories consisted of the following at September 30, 2017 and December 31, 2016:
September 30, 2017

December 31, 2016

Finished goods
Spare parts
Reserves for inventory obsolescence

$

2,268,100
161,092
(58,087)

$

4,102,621
183,357
(121,862)

Inventories, net

$

2,371,105

$

4,164,116

During the nine months ended September 30, 2017 and 2016, the Company wrote off obsolete inventories of $48,692 and $311,493, respectively.
NOTE 6 – PREPAID EXPENSES AND OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
Prepaid expenses and other current assets consisted of the following at September 30, 2017 and December 31, 2016:
September 30, 2017

December 31, 2016

Prepayments to vendors
Employee receivables
Prepaid state and local taxes
Prepaid and refundable income taxes
Prepaid license and other

$

1,314,476
2,300
33,435
85,348

$

351,408
3,571
16,385
30,879
44,793

Prepaid expenses and other current assets

$

1,435,559

$

447,036

Prepayments to vendors represent deposits made to vendors for purchases of inventories.
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NOTE 7 – PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
Property and equipment consisted of the following at September 30, 2017 and December 31, 2016:
Useful lives
Leasehold improvements
Office equipment
Other equipment

9-10 years
3-5 years
5 years

September 30, 2017
$

3,248
21,341
42,485

Property and equipment, at cost
Accumulated depreciation

December 31, 2016
$

3,355
21,341
42,485

67,074
(32,678)
$

Property and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation

34,396

67,181
(7,141)
$

60,040

For the nine months ended September 30, 2017 and 2016, the Company recorded depreciation expense of $25,538 and $4,043, respectively.
NOTE 8 – INTANGIBLE ASSETS AND GOODWILL
Intangible assets and goodwill consisted of the following at September 30, 2017 and December 31, 2016:
Useful lives
Patents
Customer relationships
Trademarks

10 years
10 years
10 years

September 30, 2017
$

Intangible assets, at cost
Accumulated amortization

67,395
3,567,396
3,544,931

December 31, 2016
$

7,179,722
(879,974)

Intangible assets, net of accumulated amortization
Goodwill from acquisition of Mimio
Goodwill from acquisition of Boxlight

N/A
N/A

67,395
3,567,396
3,544,931
7,179,722
(346,245)

$

6,299,748

$

6,833,477

$

44,931
4,137,060
4,181,991

$

44,931
4,137,060
4,181,991

$

$

For the nine months ended September 30, 2017 and 2016, the Company recorded amortization expense of $533,729 and $159,058, respectively.
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NOTE 9 – SHORT-TERM DEBT
Line of Credit – Sy Silverstein
On April 3, 2015, the Company entered into a line of credit agreement with Sy Silverstein, an individual. Pursuant to the agreement, the Company
obtained the line of credit for up to a maximum of $300,000 to complete its initial public offering (“IPO”) process. The Company borrowed $100,000
under the agreement. The advances from this agreement accrue interest at 12% per annum, along with a $10,000 documentation fee, and is due on
the effective date of the Company’s IPO. The $10,000 documentation fee was recorded as debt discount.
On October 4, 2016, Mr. Silverstein agreed to settle the outstanding principal of $100,000 and accrued interest of $15,919 with 109,915 shares of the
Company’s Class A common stock. These shares were valued at $115,919 based on the Company’s most recent selling price of the Class A common
stock on the settlement date.
Skyview Note
On April 1, 2016, the Company assumed from Mim Holdings a $3,425,000 senior secured note that is payable to Skyview, the former equity owner of
Mimio for the acquisition of Mimio. The Skyview Note accrues interest at 6% per annum and was due on July 3, 2016. The Skyview Note is secured
by a lien and security interest on all of the assets of Mimio, subordinating to the Crestmark line of credit, and guaranteed by Vert Capital and VC2
Partners.
On July 5, 2016 and August 3, 2016, the Skyview Note was amended. On July 5, 2016, principal was increased to $3,660,508 to settle $235,508 of
accounts payable owed by Mimio to Skyview’s affiliate. On August 3, 2016, the principal of the note was increased to $4,010,508 to include an
additional fee of $350,000 to extend the maturity date to December 15, 2016. The Company recorded the $350,000 extension fee to interest expense.
Additionally, the Company agreed to pay $2,500,000 of the note on the earlier of (1) September 30, 2016 or (2) the date the Company obtained a new
debt facility. The Company made the $2,500,000 payment on September 29, 2016 with the proceeds from a line of credit with Crestmark Bank. The
remaining outstanding balance together with any unpaid accrued interest was due and unpaid on December 15, 2016. On December 28, 2016, the
Company received a Notice of Default from Skyview because the Company failed to make a $1,460,508 payment on December 15, 2016. On June 1,
2017, we were served with a lawsuit from Skyview seeking judgment on the $1,460,508 outstanding balance due under the currently defaulted
Skyview Note, plus accrued interest thereon, and also seeking to foreclose on the assets of Mimio that is now owned and operated by our Boxlight,
Inc.
On September 11, 2017, the outstanding principal and accrued interest were settled in full with funds from the Sallyport Commercial Finance, LLC
line of credit. As of December 31, 2016, outstanding principal and accrued interest for the Skyview Note were $1,460,508 and $1,905, respectively.
AHA Note
On June 3, 2016, prior to the Company’s acquisition, Boxlight Group issued a promissory note to AHA Inc. Co Ltd., a Korean corporation, in the
amount of $1,895,413 to settle unpaid accounts payable of $1,866,418 for the purchases of inventory for the Company. Interest shall be payable in
the amount of 6.5% per annum. The principal was due and payable in eight equal monthly principal payments in the amount of $236,926 beginning
on June 30, 2016. Interest shall be paid in consecutive monthly installments for eight months, due and payable upon the last business day of each
month. As of September 30, 2017, outstanding principal and accrued interest for AHA note were $610,783 and $42,095, respectively. As of December
31, 2016, outstanding principal and accrued interest were $610,783 and $12,401, respectively. The Company was not able to make monthly principal
payments in accordance with note agreement and, accordingly, the note was in default at September 30, 2017 and December 31, 2016.
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Loan and Security Agreement – Hitachi Capital America Corp.
On July 6, 2016, the Company entered into a loan and security agreement with Hitachi Capital America Corp. (“Hitachi”). The agreement allowed the
Company to borrow up to $2,500,000 based on the balance of eligible accounts receivable and inventory at an interest rate equal to 1.75% in excess
of the prime rate. The loan was due and payable on demand. The outstanding amount payable to Hitachi was paid in full on September 29, 2016,
from the proceeds of the line of credit financing received from Crestmark Bank. In connection with the agreement with Hitachi, the Company paid
$18,000 for loan fees which was included in interest expense.
Line of Credit – Crestmark Bank
On September 21, 2016, the Company entered into a $5,000,000 line of credit agreement with Crestmark Bank. Advances against this agreement
accrued interest at 2.25% in excess of prime rate, with a minimum rate of 5.75% per annum. The outstanding balance under this agreement was due
and payable upon demand.
As of December 31, 2016, outstanding principal and accrued interest were $720,291 and $0, respectively. $61,000 of loan fees related to the
agreement with Crestmark Bank was included in interest expense.
On January 12, 2017, the Company received a default notice from Crestmark Bank due to the Notice of Default received from Skyview Capital and
failure to meet the tangible net worth covenant requirement. On February 2, 2017, the Company satisfied in full all obligations due to Crestmark.
Accounts Receivable Financing – Sallyport Commercial Finance
On August 15, 2017, Boxlight Inc, and Genesis entered into a 12-month term account sale and purchase agreement with Sallyport Commercial
Finance, LLC (“Sallyport”). Pursuant to the agreement, Sallyport agreed to purchase 85% of the eligible accounts receivable of the Company with
right of recourse back to the Company if the receivables are not collectible. This agreement requires a minimum monthly draw of $1,250,000 with a
maximum facility limit of $6,000,000. Advances against this agreement accrue interest at 4% in excess of highest prime rate publicly announced from
time to time with a floor of 4.25%. In addition, the Company is required to pay a $950 audit fee per day. The Company granted Sallyport a security
interest to all of Boxlight Inc. and Genesis’s assets.
As of September 30, 2017, outstanding principal and accrued interest were $2,324,218 and $0, respectively. For the nine months ended September 30,
2017, the Company incurred interest expense and loan fees of $112,115.
NOTE 10 – SHORT-TERM DEBT– RELATED PARTIES
Line of Credit - Vert Capital
On September 30, 2014, the Company entered into a line of credit agreement with Vert Capital, the Company’s majority shareholder. Pursuant to the
agreement, as amended, the Company obtained a line of credit from Vert Capital up to a maximum of $900,000 to complete its IPO process. The funds
originally accrued interest at 10% per annum. Pursuant to an amendment to the purchase agreement with EDI entered in September 2016, the funds
now accrue interest at 5.75% per annum. See Note 3. The advance is due on the effective date of the Company’s IPO. In connection with this
agreement, the Company granted Vert Capital a security interest to all of its assets and properties which is subordinated to the Sallyport accounts
receivable financing. As of September 30, 2017, outstanding principal and accrued interest under this agreement were $627,550 and $141,679,
respectively. As of December 31, 2016, outstanding principal and accrued interest under this agreement were $822,550 and $115,319, respectively.
Line of Credit - Logical Choice Corporation-Delaware
On May 21, 2014, the Company entered into a line of credit agreement with Logical Choice Corporation-Delaware (“LCC-Delaware”), former sole
member of Genesis. The line of credit allowed the Company to borrow up to $500,000 for working capital and business expansion. The funds when
borrowed accrued interest at 10% per annum. Interest accrued on any advanced funds was due monthly and the outstanding principal and any
accrued interest were due in full on May 21, 2015. In May 2016, the maturity date was extended to May 21, 2018. The assets of Genesis have been
pledged as a security interest against any advances on the line of credit. As of September 30, 2017, outstanding principal and accrued interest under
this agreement was $54,000 and $14,555, respectively. As of December 31, 2016, outstanding principal and accrued interest under this agreement
was $54,000 and $10,516, respectively.
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On September 30, 2014, the Company entered into a line of credit agreement with LCC-Delaware. Pursuant to the agreement, the Company obtained
an additional line of credit from LCC-Delaware up to a maximum of $500,000 for a term of 3 years. The advances from this agreement accrue interest
at 10% per annum and is due on demand. In connection with this agreement, the Company granted LCC-Delaware a second lien and security
interest to all of its assets and properties, subordinate to Vert Capital. Pursuant to an amendment to the purchase agreement with EDI entered in
September 2016, LCC - Delaware forgave the entire payable balance of $185,129 and interest of $37,241 owed by the Company.
NOTE 11 – CONVERTIBLE NOTES PAYABLE – RELATED PARTIES
Convertible Note Payable – Mark Elliott
On January 16, 2015, the Company issued a note to Mark Elliott, the Company’s Chief Executive Officer, in the amount of $50,000. The note is due
on December 30, 2017 as amended and bears interest at an annual rate of 10%, compounded monthly. The note is convertible to the Company’s
common stock at the lesser of (i) $6.28 per share, (ii) a discount of 20% to the stock price if the Company’s common stock is publicly traded, or (iii) if
applicable, such other amount negotiated by the Company. The note holder may convert all but not less than all of the outstanding principal and
interest due under this note upon the conversion date. As of September 30, 2017, outstanding principal and accrued interest under this agreement
were $50,000 and $13,548, respectively. As of December 31, 2016, outstanding principal and accrued interest under this agreement were $50,000 and
$9,809, respectively.
Convertible Note Payable – James Lofgren
On August 19, 2015, the Company issued a convertible promissory note to James Lofgren, spouse of Sheri Lofgren, the Company’s Chief Financial
Officer, in the amount of $45,000. The note was due on April 30, 2016 and bears interest at an annual rate of 13%, compounded monthly. Mr. Lofgren
may convert all, but not less than all, of the outstanding principal and interest due under this note into the Company’s Class A common stock, at
the lesser of (i) $6.28 per share or (ii) a discount of 20% to the trading price if the Company’s common stock is then publicly traded. As of December
31, 2015, outstanding principal and accrued interest under this agreement were $45,000 and $2,404, respectively. The outstanding balance under this
note was fully repaid on March 31, 2016.
Convertible Promissory Note– K Laser
On January 13, 2017, the Company issued a convertible promissory note to K Laser International Co., Ltd. (“K Laser”) in the amount of $1,000,000.
The note is due on December 31, 2017 and bears interest at an annual rate of 8%, compounded monthly. The note is convertible into the Company’s
common stock at $5.60 per share prior to a listing on a public exchange. If converted after a listing on a public exchange, the conversion shares shall
be calculated as the average of the 7 days closing price. As of September 30, 2017, outstanding principal and accrued interest for the note were
$1,000,000 and $28,055 respectively. The note is secured by all assets of the Company and subordinated to the Sallyport accounts receivable
financing.
NOTE 12 – LONG-TERM DEBT – RELATED PARTIES
Marlborough Note
On April 1, 2016, the Company issued a $2,000,000 unsecured convertible promissory note to Marlborough Trust for the acquisition of Mimio. The
Marlborough Note is convertible by the holder into the Company’s Class A common stock at a per share conversion price equal to 55% of the initial
offering price. The Marlborough note bears a one-time simple interest charge of 8% and is due on March 31, 2019. On June 27, 2017, the
Marlborough Trust entered into a note conversion agreement with Boxlight Parent under which the Marlborough Trust agreed, upon the effective
date of the Company’s post-effective amendment to the Company’s registration statement on Form S-1, to convert 100% of the $2,000,000
Marlborough Note and $79,853 of accrued interest into shares of our Class A common stock at a conversion price of $6.30 per share, a total of
330,135 shares upon conversion. The effective date was August 29, 2017 at which time the outstanding note and accrued interest was converted to
330,135 shares. As of December 31, 2016, outstanding principal and long-term accrued interest for the Marlborough Note were $2,000,000 and
$40,183, respectively.
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EDI Note
On September 28, 2016, the Company entered into an amendment with EDI for the acquisition of Boxlight Group. The Company agreed to issue a
$2,000,000 non-negotiable convertible promissory note to settle the unpaid balance of the account payable owed by Boxlight Group to EDI. The
note bears a one-time simple interest charge of 4% and all principal and accrued interest is due on March 31, 2019. Following the completion of
Boxlight Corporation’s IPO, the EDI Note is convertible into shares of Boxlight Corporation’s Class A common stock at a conversion price equal to
80% of the initial per share offering price of the Class A common stock offered under the IPO. Boxlight Corporation has the option, in lieu of issuing
its Class A common stock, to prepay the entire unpaid principal amount of the EDI Note plus accrued interest thereon within 72 hours of the first
conversion notice.
On May 11, 2017, the Company issued a $2,000,000 unsecured convertible promissory note to EDI replacing the 4% non-negotiable convertible
promissory note of $2,000,000 issued at September 28, 2016. The new EDI Note is convertible into the Company’s Class A common stock at a per
share conversion price equal to 55% of the initial offering price. The new note bears a one-time simple interest charge of 4% due on March 31, 2019.
On June 27, 2017, EDI entered into a note conversion agreement with Boxlight Parent under which EDI agreed, upon the effective date of the
Company’s post-effective amendment to the Company’s registration statement on Form S-1, to convert 100% of the $2,000,000 convertible
promissory note and $60,274 of accrued interest into shares of our Class A common stock at a conversion price of $6.30 per share, a total of 327,027
shares upon conversion. The effective date was August 29, 2017, at which time the outstanding note and accrued interest was converted to 327,027
shares.
As of December 31, 2016, outstanding principal and long-term accrued interest for EDI Note were $2,000,000 and $20,603, respectively.
NOTE 13 – DEFERRED REVENUE
On July 18, 2016, upon the acquisition of Boxlight Group, the Company assumed a $761,622 future performance obligation for separately priced
extended warranties sold by Boxlight Group based on the assets acquired and liabilities assumed.
Change in deferred revenue consisted of the following for the nine months ended September 30, 2017 and for the year ended December 31, 2016:
September 30, 2017
Balance, beginning
Assumed from Boxlight Group
Additions
Amortization
Balance, ending

$

Deferred revenue – short-term
Deferred revenue – long-term
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December 31, 2016
$

$

767,726
247,349
(372,831)
642,244

$

761,622
259,744
(253,640)
767,726

$
$

403,870
238,374

$
$

495,603
272,123

NOTE 14 – EQUITY
Preferred Shares
The Company’s articles of incorporation provide that the Company is authorized to issue 50,000,000 preferred shares consisting of: 1) 250,000
shares of voting Series A preferred stock, with a par value of $0.0001 per share (of which none are issued); 2) 1,200,000 shares of voting Series B
preferred stock, with a par value of $0.0001 per share (of which 1,000,000 shares are issued); 3) 270,000 shares of voting Series C preferred stock,
with a par value of $0.0001 per share (all of which are issued); and 4) 48,280,000 shares to be designated by the Company’s Board of Directors.
Upon the effectiveness of a registration statement registering for the resale of the Company’s Class A common stock and the listing of our Class A
common stock on the Nasdaq Capital Market or other securities exchange, all of the shares of Series B and Series C Preferred Stock shall be
automatically converted into the applicable number of shares of Class A common stock. All of the Series A Preferred Stock shall be automatically
converted into Class A common stock not later than one year after the effective date of the Company’s registration statement in connection with an
IPO of the Company’s Class A common stock. As of September 30, 2017 and December 31, 2016, the Company had issued 1,000,000 shares of Series
B Preferred Stock for the acquisition of Genesis and 270,000 shares of Series C Preferred Stock for the acquisition of Boxlight Group.
Common Shares
In 2014, the Company issued 4,079,681 shares of its Class A common stock to various investors for cash of $2,560. The Company received
promissory notes from the investors for the proceeds. These notes were due on March 31, 2015 and bear no interest through March 31, 2015. After
March 31, 2015, the notes bear interest of 12% per annum. As of December 31, 2016, the Company has received proceeds of $2,335 from issuance of
these shares and $225 was recorded by the Company as subscription receivable.
In January 2015, the Company amended its articles of incorporation to state that the Company’s common shares consist of: 1) 150,000,000 shares of
Class A voting common stock and 2) 50,000,000 shares of Class B non-voting common stock. Class A and Class B common stock have the same
rights except that Class A common stock is entitled to one vote per share while Class B common stock has no voting rights. Upon any public or
private sale or disposition by any holder of Class B common stock, such shares of Class B common stock shall automatically convert into shares of
Class A common stock. As of September 30, 2017 and December 31, 2016, the Company had 5,808,346 and 4,621,687 shares, respectively, of Class A
common stock issued and outstanding. No Class B shares were outstanding at September 30, 2017 and December 31, 2016.
Issuances of common stock to K-Laser for cash
On September 28, 2016, pursuant to an amended agreement with EDI, K Laser, the principal stockholder of EDI, purchased 178,572 shares of Class A
common stock at $5.60 per share. The per share sale price was intended to be 80% of the initial price per share of the Company’s Class A common
stock offered to the public under IPO. Accordingly, the 178,572 shares of Class A common stock are subject to increase in the event that the initial
offering price of the shares offered is less than $7.00. The $5.60 price and the number of shares sold in the private placement will not change if the
initial per share offering price is greater than $7.00. The Company agreed to use $650,000 of the proceeds to retire a separate obligation owed by
Boxlight Inc. to EDI.
Issuances of common stock for cash
In September 2016, the Company issued 18,014 shares of Class A common stock at $1.055 per share for cash of $19,000. As of September 30, 2017
and December 31, 2016, the Company had received cash of $18,900 and had subscriptions receivable of $100.
In November 2016, the Company issued 33,865 shares of Class A common stock at $5.906 per share for cash of $200,004.
Issuances of common stock for settlement of accounts payable and debt
In September and October 2016, the Company issued an aggregate of 94,735 shares at a fair value of $1.055 per share to settle accounts payable of
$99,910 (including $77,268 accrued commission payable to Mark Elliott, the Company’s CEO).
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In October 2016, the Company issued 3,556 shares of Class A common stock to a third party at $5.906 per share to settle accounts payable of
$21,000.
In October 2016, the Company issued 109,915 shares of Class A common stock at a fair value of $1.055 per share to settle $100,000 of the
outstanding principal short-term debt and $15,919 of accrued interest.
In June 2017, EDI agreed to convert $1,500,000 of accounts payable into 238,095 shares of Class A common stock at a conversion price of $6.30 per
share. No gain or loss was recorded on the conversion.
In August 2017, EDI and Marlborough converted long-term convertible note payable and accrued interest of $4,140,127 in total into 657,162 shares
of Class A common stock at a conversion price of $6.30 per share. See Note 12. No gain or loss was recorded on the conversion.
Distribution to Vert Capital
During the first quarter of 2016, Mimio was under the control of Vert Capital. It distributed cash of $700,375 to Vert Capital for payments of the
Skyview Note prior to the acquisition by the Company.
Adoption of the 2014 Stock Option Plan
On September 19, 2014, the Board approved the Company’s 2014 Stock Option Plan. The total number of underlying shares of the Company’s Class
A common stock available for grant to directors, officers, key employees, and consultants of the Company or a subsidiary of the Company under
the plan is 2,390,438 shares. As of September 30, 2017, the Company had 1,591,357 shares reserved for issuance under the plan.
NOTE 15 – STOCK SPLITS
In December 2016, the Company completed a stock split of 0.948207171 for 1 of its Class A common stock increasing its outstanding Class A
common stock to 4,621,687 shares. All share numbers or per share information presented give effect to the stock splits.
NOTE 16 – STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION
Stock Options
Following is a summary of the option activities during the nine months ended September 30, 2017:

Number of Units
850,405
18,000
(291,402)
(120,971)
456,032
334,091

Outstanding, December 31,2016
Granted
Exercised
Cancelled
Outstanding, September 30, 2017
Exercisable, September 30, 2017
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Weighted
Average
Exercise Price
$
$
$
$
$
$

0.08
5.60
0.0001
0.12
0.35
0.17

Weighted
Average
Remaining
Contractual
Term (in years)
7.29
5.00

5.25
6.96

On May 13, 2016, the Company granted options to purchase 120,971 shares of Class A common stock at $0.12 per share to an employee for services.
These options vest in four years and commenced in the quarter ended June 30, 2016 and expire 5 years from the date of grant. The options have a
fair value of $109,000 that was calculated using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model.
On November 1, 2016, the Company entered into an amended employment agreement with its Chief Financial Officer, which amended the exercise
price of the 291,402 options granted from $0.13 to $0.0001 per share. The options vesting term was changed to (i) 50% of the remaining unvested
options shall vest immediately following the agreement, (ii) all remaining unvested options shall vest on March 31, 2017. Pursuant to the amendment
of employment agreement, the fair value of options granted was changed to approximately $484,000 using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model.
In 2017, the officer exercised the options and the Company issued 291,402 shares to the officer.
On April 4, 2017, the Company granted options to purchase 18,000 shares of Series A common stock at $5.60 per share to an employee for services.
These options vest in four years and commenced in the quarter ended June 30, 2017 and expire 5 years from the date of grant. The options have a
fair value of approximately $7,000 that was calculated using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model.
Variables used in the Black-Scholes option-pricing model for options granted during the year ended December 31, 2016 include: (1) discount rate of
0.97 - 0.99% (2) expected life of 3.75 to 3.96 years, (3) expected volatility range of 66 to 69%, and (4) zero expected dividends.
Variables used in the Black-Scholes option-pricing model for options granted during the nine months ended September 30, 2017 include: (1)
discount rate of 1.47% (2) expected life of 3.75 years, (3) expected volatility of 68%, and (4) zero expected dividends.
For the nine months ended September 30, 2017 and 2016, the Company recorded stock compensation expense of $50,046 and $13,531, respectively.
NOTE 17 –RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Management Agreement – VC2 Advisors, LLC
On July 15, 2015, the Company executed an agreement with VC2 Advisors, LLC (“VC2”), a Delaware limited liability company, in which Michael
Pope, the Company’s President and Director, is a managing member. VC2 is owned by Sugar House Trust and AEL Irrevocable Trust, trusts for the
benefit of the families of Michael Pope and Adam Levin, respectively. The effective date of this agreement is the date of the consummation of the
IPO of the Company’s Class A common stock. Pursuant to the agreement, VC2 shall perform consulting services for the Company relating to,
among other things, sourcing and analyzing strategic acquisitions and introductions to various financing sources. VC2 shall receive an annual
management fee payable in cash equal to 1.5% of total consolidated revenues at the end of each fiscal year ended December 31, 2016, 2017 and
2018, payable in monthly installments, commencing as of the date of the Company’s IPO. The annual fee is subject to a cap of $1,000,000 in each of
2016, 2017 and 2018. At its option, VC2 may also defer payment until the end of each year, payable as an option to purchase shares of Class A
common stock of the Company, at a price per share equal to 100% of the closing price of the Company’s Class A common stock as traded on
Nasdaq or any other national securities exchange as of December 31 of such year. Effective as of October 12, 2016, as a result of Adam Levin and
Michael Pope no longer being employed at VC2, the consulting agreement with VC2 was terminated. Subsequently, the Company entered into new
consulting agreements on identical terms with other entities which now employ Michael Pope and Adam Levin.
Warrant Agreement
On November 7, 2014, we issued to Vert Capital and a consultant five year warrants to purchase 796,813 and 23,904 shares of our Class A common
stock, respectively, at an exercise price, equal to 110% of the initial per share offering price of the shares being sold under the Company’s initial
public offering. Among other provisions, such warrants contain “cashless” exercise rights and prohibit the holder from selling any of the shares
issuable upon exercise of such warrants for a period of not less than nine months from the date of issuance. Effective as of October 12, 2016, and as
a result of Adam Levin and Michael Pope no longer being employed at Vert Capital, Boxlight Parent cancelled the remaining balance of the Vert
Capital warrants and reissued 597,610 and 199,203 of such warrants to entities associated with Adam Levin and to Michael Pope, respectively.
These warrants had a value at par per share at the grant date because the Company was incorporated in September 2014 and at development stage.
These warrants expire on December 31, 2019. These warrants will be valued using Black-Scholes option-pricing model upon the completion of the
Company’s initial public offering.
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Sales and Purchases - EDI
EDI, an affiliate of the Company’s major shareholder K-Laser, is a major supplier of products to the Company. For the nine months ended September
30, 2017 and 2016, the Company had purchases of $3,210,252 and $804,122, respectively, from Everest Display Inc. For the nine months ended
September 30, 2017 and 2016, the Company had sales of $30,527 and $160,048, respectively, to Everest Display Inc. As of September 30, 2017 and
December 31, 2016, the Company had accounts payable of $4,143,544 and $3,379,161, respectively, to Everest Display Inc.
Other advance - EDI
In 2017, the Company received cash of $235,000 and $250,000 from Taiwanese individuals and EDI, respectively. These individuals and EDI
intended to purchase the Company’s Class A common shares. However, the sales were not finalized and these investors requested cash refunds.
As of September 30, 2017, the Company has paid EDI $250,000. and has recorded the advances from Taiwanese individuals in accounts payable and
accrued liabilities to third parties.
NOTE 18 – COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Litigation
In July 2015, a supplier filed a lawsuit against the Company for outstanding payables owed by the Company of approximately $72,000. In February
2016, the supplier and the Company agreed to settle the indebted balance for $43,000 provided that the Company paid on or before March 16, 2016.
The Company failed to make the payment and the judgement amount was therefore increased to approximately $70,000 and with interest and court
costs of approximately $2,300. The Company is currently negotiating new settlement terms with the supplier.
In October 2017, a supplier filed a lawsuit against the Company. See Note 20.
Trademark
On April 16, 2009, Boxlight Inc. entered into a trademark license agreement with Herbert H. Myers whereby Boxlight Inc. agreed to pay Mr. Myers
15% of the quarterly net income of Boxlight Inc. This payment shall continue until $1,250,000 is paid upon which the license fee shall drop to 10%.
Upon reaching the aggregate sum of $2,500,000 or 10 years of licensing, whichever comes first, the trademark will be sold to Boxlight Inc. for $1.
Through the period ended December 31, 2014, Boxlight Inc. has paid $32,580 related to this agreement.
In October 2014, Boxlight Inc. entered into an amendment to the trademark license agreement with Mr. Myers, where Mr. Myers agreed to sell the
trademark for $250,000. Payment would be made through the issuance of shares of Boxlight Corporation by dividing $250,000 by the initial price per
share of shares of Boxlight Corporation’s common stock sold in the initial public offering of Boxlight Corporation on the date the registration
statement is declared effective by the Securities and Exchange Commission. Trademark cost of $250,000 is included in the accompanying
consolidated balance sheets under the caption “Intangible assets”, with the corresponding liability included under the caption “Other current
liabilities”.
Operating Lease Commitments
The Company leases two office spaces under non-cancelable lease agreements. The leases provide that the Company pays only a monthly rental
and is not responsible for taxes, insurance or maintenance expenses related to the property. Future minimum lease payments of the Company’s
operating leases with a term subsequent to September 30, 2017 are as follows:
Year ending December 31,
2017
2018
2019
Net Minimum Lease Payments

Amount
$

$
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67,350
265,050
60,600
393,000

The Company also has another office lease on a month-to-month basis. For the nine months ended September 30, 2017, aggregate rent expense was
approximately $210,250.
Agreements with Board of Directors
In March 2015, as amended on February 26, 2016, the Company entered into agreements with two new Board members. In consideration of their
agreement to serve on the Company’s Board, the Company agreed to sell a number of common shares equal to 0.5% and 1.25%, respectively, of the
Company’s fully-diluted common shares to these members. The number of the fully-diluted common shares are to be determined on a date no later
than 2 business days prior to the effective date of a registration statement in connection with an IPO of the Company’s Class A common stock. The
purchase price per share will be $0.0001 per share. The issuance of these shares will be recorded after the IPO. Additionally, one of the directors
receives a fee of $50,000 per annum, which commenced on February 26, 2016.
Warrant Agreement
On November 7, 2014, the Company granted warrants to Lackamoola, LLC to purchase an aggregate of 23,904 shares of common stock with an
exercise price equal to 110% of the price per share of the Company’s IPO or, in the situation that the Company becomes a publicly traded company
through reverse merger or other alternative methods, the volume weighted average price per share for the 20 consecutive trading days immediately
after the Company becomes a publicly traded company. These warrants expire on December 31, 2019. These warrants will be valued using BlackScholes option-pricing Model upon the completion of the Company’s initial public offering.
Agreement with Loeb & Loeb
On December 16, 2015, the Company executed an agreement with its legal counsel, Loeb & Loeb LLP (“Loeb”), pursuant to which the Company
agreed to issue 231,152 shares of Class A common stock as partial compensation for services rendered by Loeb in connection with the Company’s
IPO. The shares will be issued upon the consummation of the Company’s IPO. Upon timely payment of the cash component of compensation due
and owing to Loeb as set forth in the agreement, Loeb will be obligated to return to the Company up to 207,864 shares of common stock not yet sold
by Loeb for no further consideration and will continue to beneficially own 23,288 shares of our Class A common stock.
On April 24, 2017, the agreement was amended to increase the payable to Loeb for services rendered in connection with the Company’s IPO to
$900,000. Pursuant to the amended agreement, the Company shall make a cash payment to Loeb of $235,000 and issue 231,152 restricted shares of
Class A common stock at the closing of the IPO. Commencing with the first month after the closing of the IPO, the Company shall make six monthly
cash payments to Loeb each in the amount of $39,166 no later than the fifth day of each month for a total amount of $235,000. Upon receipt of the
entire $235,000, Loeb will return 69,345 shares to the Company. Not later than 12 months after the closing of the IPO, the Company shall pay to Loeb
the remaining balance of $430,000. Upon receipt of such final payment, Loeb will return an additional 138,691 shares to the Company. Loeb will
continue to beneficially own 23,116 shares of our Class A common stock.
NOTE 19 – CUSTOMER AND SUPPLIER CONCENTRATION
Significant customers and suppliers are those that account for greater than 10% of the Company’s revenues and purchases.
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The Company generated a portion of its revenues from two customers (13% and 10%) for the nine months ended September 30, 2017. As of
September 30, 2017 and December 31, 2016, the amount due from the two customers included in accounts receivable was $1,295,937 and $174,217,
respectively. The loss of the significant customers or the failure to attract new customers could have a material adverse effect on our business,
results of operations and financial condition.
The Company purchased a portion of materials from two vendors (41% and 31%) for the nine months ended September 30, 2017. As of September
30, 2017 and December 31, 2016, the amounts due to one of the vendors included in accounts payable – related party was $4,143,544 and $3,379,161,
respectively. As of September 30, 2017 and December 31, 2016, the Company had prepayments to another vendor included in prepaid expenses and
other current assets of $724,856 and $228,552, respectively. The Company believes there are numerous other suppliers that could be substituted
should the supplier become unavailable or non-competitive.
NOTE 20 – SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
In October 2017, a supplier filed a lawsuit against the Company for outstanding debt and accrued interest owed by the Company of approximately
$838,214. The lawsuit also included a claim for attorney fees of $83,846. The Company has obtained legal counsel and is in the process of
negotiating a settlement.
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Item 2. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations
In addition to historical information, this Form 10-Q may contain forward-looking statements relating to Boxlight Corporation. All statements,
trend analyses and other information relative to markets for our products and trends in revenue, gross margins and anticipated expense levels,
as well as other statements including words such as “anticipate”, “believe”, “plan”, “estimate”, “expect”, and “intend”, and other similar
expressions, constitute forward-looking statements. Prospective investors are cautioned that any such forward-looking statements are not
guarantees of future performance and involve risks and uncertainties including those factors described below under “Factors That May Affect
Future Operations”, and that actual results may differ materially from those contemplated by such forward-looking statements. ISC undertakes
no obligation to update or revise forward-looking statements to reflect changed assumptions, the occurrence of unanticipated events or changes
in future operating results.
Overview
We are a visual display technology company that is seeking to become a world leading innovator, and integrator of interactive products
for schools, as well as for business and government conferencing. We currently design, produce and distribute interactive projectors and distribute
interactive LED flat panels in the education market. We also distribute science, technology, engineering and math (or “STEM”) data logging
products to the educational market.
To date, we have generated substantially all of our revenue from the sale of our software and expanding product line of projectors, LED
panels, interactive whiteboards and display devices to the educational market.
In addition, we have implemented a comprehensive plan to reach profitability for our business acquisitions. Highlights of this plan include:
●

Making immediate strides to integrate products of the acquisition companies and cross train our sales reps to increase their offerings.
The combination of products and cross training has already resulted in increased sales. The synergy we have found between the
products of Boxlight and Mimio are adding opportunities to resellers for both companies to increase their sales.

●

Proceeds from our public offering will allow us to add additional inventory on hand to fulfill currently existing orders.

●

Recently hired sales reps with significant education technology sales experience in their respective territories has resulted in our
current pipeline reaching a record high level.

●

We are seeing increased demand in the US market for technology sales and have the products and infrastructure in place to handle
our expected growth.

Acquisition Strategy and Challenges
Our growth strategy includes acquiring assets and technologies of companies that have products, technologies, industry specializations
or geographic coverage that extend or complement our existing business. The process to undertake a potential acquisition is time-consuming and
costly. We expect to expend significant resources to undertake business, financial and legal due diligence on our potential acquisition targets, and
there is no guarantee that we will complete any acquisition that we pursue.
We believe we can achieve significant cost-savings by merging the operations of the companies we acquire and after their acquisition
leverage the opportunity to reduce costs through the following methods:
●

Staff reductions – consolidating resources, such as accounting, marketing and human resources.

●

Economies of scale – improved purchasing power with a greater ability to negotiate prices with suppliers.

●

Improved market reach and industry visibility – increase in customer base and entry into new markets.

As a result, we believe that an analysis of the historical costs and expenses of our Target Sellers prior to acquisition will not provide
guidance as to the anticipated results after acquisition. We anticipate that we will be able to achieve significant reductions in our costs of revenue
and selling, general and administrative expenses from the levels currently incurred by the Target Sellers operating independently, thereby
increasing our EBITDA and cash flows.
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Operating Results – Boxlight Corporation (Retrospectively adjusted for the acquisitions of Mimio and Genesis)
For the nine-month periods ended September 30, 2017 and 2016
Revenues. Total revenues for the nine months ended September 30, 2017 were $20,407,258 as compared to $15,371,130 for the nine months
ended September 30, 2016. Revenues consist of product revenues, software revenues, installation and professional development. The increase was
mainly due to the inclusion of Boxlight Group’s operating results for the nine months ended September 30, 2017. Boxlight Group was acquired on
July 18, 2016, and was only included from July 18 through September 30 in the nine-month period ended September 30, 2016.
Cost of Revenues. Cost of revenues for the nine months ended September 30, 2017 was $14,595,780 as compared to $9,485,596 for the nine
months ended September 30, 2016. Cost of revenues consist primarily of product cost, freight expenses and inventory write-downs. Cost of
revenues increased because of the increase in revenues. Gross profit decreased mainly because Boxlight Group’s margin is lower than Mimio’s
margin. Sales to Mimio’s customers decreased for the nine months ended September 30, 2017 and Mimio’s gross margin for the nine months ended
September 30, 2016 was higher than usual. In addition, the Company incurred significantly more freight fees in early 2017 due to the usage of air
freight shipments instead of ocean cargo in order to more quickly meet our customer’s needs.
General and Administrative Expenses. General and administrative expenses for the nine months ended September 30, 2017 was $7,049,288
as compared to $4,701,275 for the nine months ended September 30, 2016. The increase mainly resulted from the inclusion of Boxlight Group’s
operating expenses for the nine months ended September 30, 2017 and additional professional expenses incurred related to the initial public offering.
Research and Development Expenses. Research and development expenses for the nine months ended September 30, 2017 was $357,955 as
compared to $846,621 for the nine months ended September 30, 2016. The decrease mainly resulted from lower research and development activity in
2017.
Other income (expense), net. Other expense for the nine months ended September 30, 2017 was $309,424 as compared to $680,398 for the
nine months ended September 30, 2016. The decrease was a result of the reduction in interest expense resulting from the conversion and payoff of
debt in the third quarter of 2017.
Net loss. Net loss was $1,905,189 and $342,760 for the nine months ended September 30, 2017 and 2016, respectively. The change was
mainly attributable to the decrease in gross profit, primarily due to the increase in freight costs incurred to air freight to our customers, along with
the increase in operating expenses from the inclusion of Boxlight Group’s results for the nine months ended September 30, 2017.
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For the three-month periods ended September 30, 2017 and 2016
Revenues. Total revenues for the three months ended September 30, 2017 were $10,228,389 as compared to $7,877,595 for the three months
ended September 30, 2016. Revenues consist of product revenues, software revenues, installation and professional development. The increase was
mainly due to the inclusion of Boxlight Group’s operating results for the three months ended September 30, 2017. Boxlight Group was acquired on
July 18, 2016, and was only included from July 18 through September 30 in the three-month period ended September 30, 2016.
Cost of Revenues. Cost of revenues for the three months ended September 30, 2017 was $7,327,701 as compared to $5,084,340 for the three
months ended September 30, 2016. Cost of revenues consist primarily of product cost, freight expenses and inventory write-downs. Cost of
revenues increased because of the increase in revenues. Gross profit decreased mainly because Boxlight Group’s margin is lower than Mimio’s
margin. Sales to Mimio’s customers decreased for the three months ended September 30, 2017.
General and Administrative Expenses. General and administrative expenses for the three months ended September 30, 2017 was $2,295,101
as compared to $2,049,917 for the three months ended September 30, 2016. The increase mainly resulted from the inclusion of Boxlight Group’s
operating expenses for the three months ended September 30, 2017 and additional professional expenses incurred related to the initial public
offering.
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Research and Development Expenses. Research and development expenses for the three months ended September 30, 2017 was $60,403 as
compared to $244,515 for the three months ended September 30, 2016. The decrease mainly resulted from lower research and development activity in
2017.
Other income (expense), net. Other expense for the three months ended September 30, 2017 was $74,890 as compared to $601,258 for the
three months ended September 30, 2016. For the three months ended September 30, 2016, the Company incurred additional interest expense for the
extension of debt. In addition, for the three months ended September 30, 2017, the Company converted certain related parties’ debt into common
shares.
Net Income and loss. Net income was $470,294 for the three months ended September 30, 2017 as compared to net loss of $102,435 for the
three months ended September 30, 2016. The change was mainly attributable to the decrease in interest expense and research and development
expenses.
Discussion of Effect of Seasonality on Financial Condition
Certain accounts on our balance sheets are subject to seasonal fluctuations. As our business and revenues grow, we expect these
seasonal trends to be reduced. The bulk of our products are shipped to our educational customers prior to the beginning of the school year, usually
in June, July, August and September. To prepare for the upcoming school year, we generally build up inventories during the second quarter of the
year. However, this year our inventories have decreased, as we have are either drop shipping products directly to the customer or bringing
inventory in and immediately shipping out to customers in order to cover our backorders.
We have been very proactive, and will continue to be proactive, in obtaining contracts during the fourth and first quarters that will help
offset the seasonality of our business.
Liquidity and Capital Resources
As of September 30, 2017, we had cash and cash equivalents of $783,181 and a working capital deficit of $4,414,859. For the nine months
ended September 30, 2017 and 2016, we had net cash provided by (used in) operating activities of ($596,727) and 184,354, respectively. In addition,
we had net cash provided by (used in) financing activities of $948,448 and ($706,084), respectively.
On August 15, 2017, the Company entered into a 12-month term line of credit agreement with Sallyport Commercial Finance, LLC. As of
September 30, 2017, the outstanding principal balance on this facility was $2,324,218.
The Company must continue to raise funds and negotiate its debt payment terms, including the AHA Note that is currently in default, to
continue to meet its liquidity requirements. Our principal plan to meet our liquidity requirements are to raise up to $7,000,000 in an IPO; with the
option of converting up to $1,050,000 of debt into Class A common stock; and use a portion of the IPO proceeds to repay or renegotiate the
Company’s debt obligations.
We financed our capital expenditures during the nine months ended September 30, 2017 primarily through the Sallyport line of credit, along
with delaying payments on accounts payable, conversion of accounts payable to equity and the issuance of note payable to K-Laser.
On January 13, 2017, the Company issued a convertible promissory note to K-Laser International Co., Ltd. in the amount of $1,000,000. The
note is due on December 31, 2017 and bears interest at an annual rate of 8%, compounded monthly. The note is convertible to the Company’s
common stock at $5.60 per share prior to a listing on a public exchange. If converted after a listing on a public exchange, the conversion shares shall
be calculated as the average of the 7 days closing price. As of September 30, 2017, outstanding principal and accrued interest for the note were
$1,000,000 and $28,055, respectively. The note is secured by all assets of the Company. We used the proceeds for general working capital
requirements.
In addition to our cash and banking arrangements, we had accounts receivable of $5,168,641 on September 30, 2017. Our accounts
receivable provides an additional source of liquidity as cash payments are collected from customers in the normal course of business. Our accounts
receivable balance fluctuates throughout the year based on the seasonality of the business.
Our other cash requirements consist primarily of day-to-day operating expenses, capital expenditures and contractual obligations with
respect to facility leases, capital equipment leases and other operating leases. We lease all of our office facilities. We expect to make future
payments on existing leases from cash generated from operations.
Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates
Our consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles accepted in the United
States. In connection with the preparation of our financial statements, we are required to make assumptions and estimates about future events and
apply judgments that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenue, expenses and the related disclosures. We base our assumptions,
estimates and judgments on historical experience, current trends and other factors that management believes to be relevant at the time our
consolidated financial statements are prepared. On a regular basis, we review the accounting policies, assumptions, estimates and judgments to
ensure that our financial statements are presented fairly and in accordance with GAAP. However, because future events and their effects cannot be
determined with certainty, actual results could differ from our assumptions and estimates, and such differences could be material.
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Our significant accounting policies are discussed in notes to each set of the financial statements. We believe that the following accounting
estimates are the most critical to aid in fully understanding and evaluating our reported financial results, and they require our most difficult,
subjective or complex judgments, resulting from the need to make estimates about the effect of matters that are inherently uncertain.
Revenue Recognition
Revenue is comprised of product sales and service revenue, net of sales returns, co-operative advertising credits, early payment discounts
and volume discount paid to VARs. The Company recognizes revenue when persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, delivery has occurred,
the sales price is fixed or determinable and collectability is reasonably assured.
Revenue from product sales is derived from the sale of projectors, interactive panels and related accessories. Evidence of an arrangement
consists of an order from its distributors, resellers or end users. The Company considers delivery to have occurred once title and risk of loss has
been transferred.
Service revenue is comprised of product installation services and training services. These service revenues are normally entered into at the
time products are sold. Service prices are established depending on product equipment sold and include a cost value for the estimated services to
be performed based on historical experience. The Company outsources installation and training services to third parties and recognizes revenue
upon completion of the services.
The Company’s standard terms and conditions of sale do not allow for product returns and it generally does not allow product returns
other than under warranty. However, the Company, on a case by case basis, will grant exceptions, mostly “buyer’s remorse” where the VAR’s end
user customer either did not understand what they were ordering, or determined that the product did not meet their needs. An allowance for sales
returns is estimated based on an analysis of historical trends.
Before Mimio was acquired by the Company, it generally provided 24 to 60 months of warranty coverage on all of its products. Mimio
products’ standard warranty period is 24 months, which can be extended to 60 months upon the end user “registering” their device on-line. The
Company’s warranty provides for repair or replacement of the associated products during the warranty period. The Company does not record
warranty cost upon sale, and instead conducts a periodic review of the warranty liability reserve, and based on historical cost-to-trailing- revenue
history, will adjust the warranty liability, with the offset to this adjustment recorded to cost of revenue.
After the acquisitions of Mimio, Genesis and Boxlight Group, the Company determined a new warranty policy to provide 12 to 36 months
of warranty coverage on projectors, displays, accessories, batteries and computers except when sold through a “Premier Education Partner” or sold
to schools where the Company provides a 60 month warranty. The Company does not record warranty costs upon sale, and instead conducts a
periodic review of the warranty liability reserve, and based on historical experience, will adjust the warranty liability, with the offset to this
adjustment recorded to cost of revenue. The warranty obligation is affected by product failure rates and the related use of materials, labor costs and
freight incurred in correcting any product failure. Should actual product failure rates, use of materials, or other costs differ from the Company’s
estimates, additional warranty liabilities could be required, which would reduce its gross profit.
The Company offers sales incentives where the Company offers discounted products delivered by the Company to its resellers and
distributors that are redeemable only if the resellers and distributors complete specified cumulative levels of revenue agreed to and written into their
reseller and distributor agreements through an executed addendum. The resellers and distributors have to submit a request for the discounted
products and cannot redeem additional discounts within 180 days from the date of the discount given on like products. The value of the award
products as compared to the value of the transactions necessary to earn the award is generally insignificant in relation to the value of the
transactions necessary to earn the award. The Company estimates and records the cost of the products related to the incentive as marketing
expense based on analyses of historical data.
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Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or net realizable value and included spare parts and finished goods. Inventories are primarily
determined using specific identification method and the first-in, first-out (“FIFO”) cost method. Cost includes direct cost from the CM or OEM, plus
material overhead related to the purchase, inbound freight and import duty costs.
The Company continuously reviews its inventory levels to identify slow-moving merchandise and markdowns necessary to clear slowmoving merchandise, which reduces the cost of inventories to its estimated net realizable value. Consideration is given to a number of quantitative
and qualitative factors, including current pricing levels and the anticipated need for subsequent markdowns, aging of inventories, historical sales
trends, and the impact of market trends and economic conditions. Estimates of markdown requirements may differ from actual results due to
changes in quantity, quality and mix of products in inventory, as well as changes in consumer preferences, market and economic conditions.
Intangible Assets and Impairment
Intangible assets are amortized using the straight-line method over their estimated period of benefit. We evaluate the recoverability of
intangible assets periodically and take into account events or circumstances that warrant revised estimates of useful lives or that indicate that
impairment exists. No material impairments of intangible assets have been identified during any of the periods presented. Intangible assets and
goodwill are tested for impairment on an annual basis, and between annual tests if indicators of potential impairment exist, using a fair-value-based
approach. Goodwill is not amortized and is not deductible for tax purposes.
Long-lived assets to be held and used or disposed of other than by sale are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. When required, impairment losses on assets to be held and used or
disposed of other than by sale are recognized based on the fair value of the asset. Long-lived assets to be disposed of by sale are reported at the
lower of its carrying amount or fair value less cost to sell.
Emerging Growth Company
We are an “emerging growth company,” as defined in the Jumpstart Our Business Startups Act of 2012, or the JOBS Act. Certain specified
reduced reporting and other regulatory requirements that are available to public companies that are emerging growth companies.
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These provisions include:
(1) an exemption from the auditor attestation requirement in the assessment of our internal controls over financial reporting required by
Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002;
(2) an exemption from the adoption of new or revised financial accounting standards until they would apply to private companies;
(3) an exemption from compliance with any new requirements adopted by the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board, or the
PCAOB, requiring mandatory audit firm rotation or a supplement to the auditor’s report in which the auditor would be required to
provide additional information about our audit and our financial statements; and
(4) reduced disclosure about our executive compensation arrangements.
We have elected to take advantage of the exemption from the adoption of new or revised financial accounting standards until they would
apply to private companies. As a result of this election, our financial statements may not be comparable to companies that comply with public
company effective dates.
Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosure About Market Risk
Not applicable.
Item 4. Controls and Procedures
(a) Evaluation of disclosure controls and procedures.
Under the supervision and with the participation of management, including the Chief Executive Officer (“CEO”) and Chief Financial Officer
(“CFO”), the Company conducted an evaluation of its disclosure controls and procedures, as such term is defined under Rule 13a-15(e)
promulgated under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”) as of March 31, 2014. Based on this evaluation, its CEO
and CFO concluded the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures are not effective due to lack of a functioning audit committee, a majority of
independent members and a majority of outside directors on our Board of Directors, resulting in ineffective oversight in the establishment, and lack
of monitoring of required internal control and procedures.
(b) Changes in internal controls over financial reporting.
There were no changes in our internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the nine-month period ended September 30,
2017 that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal controls over financial reporting.
Inherent Limitations on Effectiveness of Controls.
Because of the inherent limitations in all control systems, no control system can provide absolute assurance that all control issues and
instances of fraud, if any, within a company have been detected. These inherent limitations include the realities that judgments in decision making
can be faulty and that breakdowns can occur because of simple error or mistake. Additionally, controls can be circumvented by the individual acts
of a person, by collusion of two or more people or by management override of the control. The design of any system of controls also is based in
part upon certain assumptions about the likelihood of future events, and there can be no assurance that any design will succeed in achieving its
stated goals under all potential future conditions. Because of the inherent limitations in a cost-effective control system, misstatements due to error
or fraud may occur and may not be detected. Notwithstanding these limitations, with the changes referenced above, we believe that our disclosure
controls and procedures are designed to provide reasonable assurance of achieving their objectives.
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PART II — OTHER INFORMATION
ITEM 1. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS
On June 1, 2017, a lawsuit was filed against the Company, Mimio LLC, Mim Holdings, VC2 Partners and Vert Capital Corp by Skyview
Capital for breach of a $1,460,508 restated note. On September 11, 2017, we paid Skyview the sum of $1,577,653, which included the principal balance
of $1,460,508, plus accrued interest of $117,145, due and payable to Skyview. Although we believe that we have paid this obligation in full, Skyview
may seek additional costs and penalties as we have not received a release from Skyview in connection with the pending lawsuit.
In October 2017, a supplier filed a lawsuit against the Company for outstanding debt and accrued interest owed by the Company of
approximately $838,214. The lawsuit also included a claim for attorney fees of $83,846. The Company has obtained legal counsel and is in the
process of negotiating a settlement.
ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS
Not Applicable.
ITEM 2. UNREGISTERED SALE OF EQUITY SECURITIES AND USE OF PROCEEDS
None.
ITEM 3. DEFAULTS UPON SENIOR SECURITIES
None.
ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES
Not Applicable.
ITEM 5. OTHER INFORMATION
None.
Item 6. Exhibits
The following exhibits are filed or furnished with this report:
Exhibit No.

Description of Exhibit

31.1

Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

31.2

Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

32.1

Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, As Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the SarbanesOxley Act of 2002

32.2

Certification of Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, As Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the SarbanesOxley Act of 2002
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SIGNATURES
Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933 the registrant has duly caused this registration statement to be signed on its behalf by
the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, in the city of Lawrenceville, of the State of Georgia, on this 14th day of November, 2017.
BOXLIGHT CORPORATION
By:

/s/ JAMES MARK ELLIOTT
James Mark Elliott
Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, this registration statement has been signed by the following persons in the
capacities and on the dates indicated.
Signature

Title

Date

/s/ JAMES MARK ELLIOTT
James Mark Elliott

Chief Executive Officer and Chairman
(Principal Executive Officer)

November 14, 2017

/S/ HENRY (“HANK”) NANCE
Henry (“Hank”) Nance

Chief Operating Officer

November 14, 2017

/s/ SHERI LOFGREN
Sheri Lofgren

Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)

November 14, 2017

/s/ MICHAEL POPE
Michael Pope

President and Director

November 14, 2017

*
Tiffany Kuo

Director

November 14, 2017

*
Robin Richards

Director

November 14, 2017

*
Dr. Rudolph Crew

Director

November 14, 2017

*/s/ JAMES MARK ELLIOTT
James Mark Elliott
Authorized Signatory
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Section 2: EX-31.1
Exhibit 31.1
Certification
I, James Mark Elliott, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this quarterly Report on Form 10-Q Pursuant to Rule 15d-2 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 for the period ended
September 30, 2017 of Boxlight Corporation (the “registrant”);
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered
by this report;
3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;
4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and
15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:
a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others
within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;
b. Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under
our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;
c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and
d. Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and
5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent
functions):
a. All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and
b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.
Date: November 14, 2017

/s/ James Mark Elliott
James Mark Elliott
Chief Executive Officer (Principal Executive Officer)
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Section 3: EX-31.2
Exhibit 31.2
CERTIFICATION
I, Sheri Lofgren, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this quarterly Report on Form 10-Q Pursuant to Rule 15d-2 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 for the period ended
September 30, 2017 of Boxlight Corporation (the “registrant”);
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered
by this report;
3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;
4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and
15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:
a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others
within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;
b. Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under
our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;
c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and
d. Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and
5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent
functions):
a. All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and
b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.
Date: November 14, 2017

/s/ Sheri Lofgren
Sheri Lofgren
Chief Financial Officer
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Section 4: EX-32.1
Exhibit 32.1
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
In connection with the Quarterly Report of Boxlight Corporation (the “Company”) on Form 10-Q pursuant to Rule 15d-2 Under the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 for the period ending September 30, 2017, as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the
“Report”), I, James Mark Elliott, Chief Executive Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section
906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:
(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and
(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the
Company.
Date: November 14, 2017
/s/ James Mark Elliott
James Mark Elliott
Chief Executive Officer
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Section 5: EX-32.2
Exhibit 32.2
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
In connection with the Quarterly Report of Boxlight Corporation (the “Company”) on Form 10-Q pursuant to Rule 15d-2 Under the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 for the period ending September 30, 2017, as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the
“Report”), I, Sheri Lofgren, Chief Financial Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906
of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:
(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and
(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the
Company.
Date: November 14, 2017
/s/ Sheri Lofgren
Sheri Lofgren
Chief Financial Officer
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